
VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE / TOWN OF WESTPORT
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION

Town of Westport Community Rm., 5387 Mary Lake Rd., Town of Westport
February 13, 2018 6:00:00 PM

Agendas may change prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
Please check the posting board at the Village Hall, 500 W. Main Street,

Waunakee, Wisconsin for the current agenda.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL: Ken Sipsma, Dean Grosskopf, Eileen Bruskewitz, Pat McGowan, Brian 
Malich, Tim Black

MINUTES

1 January 9, 2018

PUBLIC COMMENT

NEW BUSINESS

1 Discussion/Recommendation on Site Plan, Endres Manufacturing Addition, 
802 S. Century Avenue, Town of Westport 

2 Discuss and Take Action on Signage for Animart, 1340 Water Wheel Drive, 
Village of Waunakee 

3 Initial Consultation, Pre-Annexation Request for Approximately 130 Acres 
at the Corner of Woodland Drive and CTH Q, Town of Westport

4 Initial Consultation, Kalscheuer, 5511 Easy Street, CSM & Rezone, Town of 
Westport

ADJOURN
Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to 
be in an accessible location or format should contact the municipal clerk at (608) 850-8500, 500 West Main Street, Waunakee, Wisconsin, at least 
twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
TOWN OF WESTPORT BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission may attend this meeting. No action will be taken by the 
Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission at this meeting.

Next scheduled meeting is 3/13/2018 6:00:00 PM.

1 of 76



JPC Meeting Minutes 12/12/2017 Page 1 of 

 

 

 

Village of Waunakee and Town of Westport 
Joint Plan Commission 

Minutes 

A regular meeting of the Waunakee/Westport Joint Plan Commission was 
held Tuesday, January 9, 2018, 6:00 p.m. at the Waunakee Village Hall 

500 W. Main Street, Waunakee, Wisconsin 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Sipsma called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Ken Sipsma,  Eileen Bruskewitz, Pat McGowan, Brian Malich, Brad Zeman 
 
Members Absent: Dean Grosskopf, Tim Black 
 
Also Present:  Tom Wilson, Kevin Even, Tracy Meinholz, Sharon Anderson, Alina Nelson, 
Jeremy Arrington, Lynn Persson, Gary Harbort, and Brad Duffrin. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion Bruskewitz, second Malich, to approve the minutes from the December 12, 2017 
meeting. Motion carried. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on CSM and Rezone, 5683 Harbort Road, Town of 
Westport 
Mr. Wilson updated the commission members on the action taken by the Town Plan Commission 
the previous evening. The Town chose to postpone action pending further information and 
revised maps. Mr. Arrington made a presentation, going over some changes that he is proposing 
to the original submittal. Mr. Sipsma opened the public hearing at 6:16 p.m. There were three 
neighbors present to speak. The asked questions about ownership of the private road and sewer 
issues. Mr. Even stated that there will need to be improvements made to the roadway, and that he 

2 of 76



JPC Meeting Minutes 12/12/2017 Page 2 of 

 

 

is not in favor of the sewer holding tank. The public hearing was closed at 6:31 p.m. Staff stated 
that Mr. Arrington and Mr. Harbort will need to grant and extension, in writing, to allow this 
item to be placed on next month’s meeting.  
 
Motion Bruskewitz, second McGowan, to postpone action and hold another public hearing on 
February 13, 2018. Motion carried. 
 
 
Initial Consultation, Breunig Rezone Request, 80 Acres NW of STH 113/19 
Mr. Wilson explained that this request was made as part of the public hearing held last month 
regarding the farmland credit rezones. Mr. Breunig asked to be taken out of the comprehensive 
plan for future development and rezoned back to agricultural to still be eligible for the credits. 
This is only a consult. The Village Plan Commission suggested a four-party agreement between 
the County, Town, Village and Breunigs regarding future development inclusion in the 
comprehensive plan for development, without County objection. No action taken. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion McGowan, second Bruskewitz, to adjourn the meeting at 6:42 p.m. Motion carried. 
 
 
Submitted By: Tracy Meinholz, Recording Secretary Approved:       

3 of 76



4 of 76



5 of 76



6 of 76



7 of 76



8 of 76



9 of 76



STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TOWN OF WESTPORT

REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
Kennedy Administration Building

Community Meeting Room
5387 Mary Lake Road

Town of Westport, Wisconsin

Monday, February 12, 2018   7:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment On Matters Not On the Agenda

3. Approve Minutes.
For the 1/8/18 meeting minutes. 

4. Yahara WINs Stormwater Partnership Video Presentation
We will have a video presentation on this partnership that we are involved in for your

information.  It is only a few minutes long but has some very good information on projects in
which the Town is involved.

5. Remaining Design Review and SIP Elements for Early Childhood Learning Center
(Landscaping, Signage, Out-Buildings, Access Improvements), 5821 Oncken         

             Road (40 Acres), Inspire ECLC/Davis, Middleton ETZ, Discussion/Action
These are the items remaining for final consideration after the SIP was approved.  The

petitioner filed items on the out-building and landscaping, but is tweaking those a little and
will be resubmitting, so it is not quite ready to proceed yet.  We will likely look at these next
month, and maybe all of the items outstanding so that the owner gets a notion of total cost. 

RECOMMENDATION: Move to postpone until the petitioner presents the information
necessary.

6. Design Review, Endres Manufacturing Building Addition, 802 S. Century Ave., Endres    
             Manufacturing, Inc., Waunakee ETZ, Discussion/Action
This is the addition onto a building that was built a few years ago, and went through

design review.  The owners now want to complete the structure that was contemplated then. 
The building is essentially proposed to be constructed the same way with the same features. 
Based on the past review, and because the building is not really visible from CTH Q (although
visible from the school entrance and drive, but consider there are already several similar
buildings along that part of the school property), staff really has no concerns with the similar

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\180212MM.wpd
0208181014

10 of 76



design, even though quite industrial in nature.  The owners might like to connect the property
to water and sewer from the Village, so any approval should be contingent on working out the
details of that with Waunakee Utilities.  There are some current screenings along the north
side of the current building, but perhaps more might be needed.  Also Waunakee Utilities does
not want further screening or plantings on the back or east side of the buildings due to the
location of its facilities and a transformer location.  The School District has indicated they are
fine with this structure as proposed.

RECOMMENDATION: Move approval of the design review as submitted subject to
submitting a screening/landscaping plan for the northern edge of the property/building
acceptable to Town and Village Staff, approval of Waunakee Utilities of any connection plan,
meeting the Town’s stormwater standard with plans to be approved by the Town Engineer and
Dane County Land Conservation, and any lighting to comply with the Town’s dark skies code
with plans to be submitted and approved by the Town Attorney.

7.  Initial Consultation, CSM and Rezone (Create 1 Lot), Kalscheuer, 5511 Easy Street
The Kalscheuers on Easy Street would like to create one more lot out of what was an

80 acre parcel.  Several years ago 2 lots were created on the northwestern edge of this property
on soils that were rocky and not great for agriculture.  Two homes are now located there.  At
the time the entire parcel was then restricted to no further development or splits.  I have
provided you information on that action.  Note that this restriction was included on the CSM
for those two lots and on another separate deed restriction.  The owners are asking for
reconsideration and to allow this one more split for another home.  The location is on the
northeast portion of their property, and in between a parcel we allowed for the Kaltenbergs
and the farm buildings on the remaining Kalscheuer farm parcel.  The Comp Plan allows for
individual review of these lots depending on use, farming ability of the property, access, and
other factors.  Here, one could possibly reconsider the restriction because of the location
between these two residences, that the property is somewhat closed off from other agricultural
lands due to topography, and if access could be obtained from the current farm driveway for
the parcel, limiting driveways on Easy Street as we have tried to do.  However, again, when
this was reviewed previously for splits, the plan commissions and Boards implemented the no
further land division restriction.  

Another consideration is that the farm building parcel has also not been split from the
remaining farmland as we often see done.  It may be worthwhile asking if that is something
the family would plan on doing in the future.  That would not create another buildable lot, but
it is yet another separate lot creation to consider here potentially that could affect your
decision.  

RECOMMENDATION: This is a consult only, but please make the owners aware of any
issues with the proposal you see, and whether it is worth their time to pursue this idea further. 

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\180212MM.wpd
0208181014

11 of 76



8. Park Committee Report/Items for Action
Terry and/or Mark, if present, will give a report on recent Committee work.

9. Historic Preservation Committee Report/Items for Action
Joe, if present, will give a report on recent Committee work. 

10. Waunakee/Westport Joint Planning Committee Report/Items for Action
I did give you information on one of the separate matters the Committee will be

reviewing; an annexation for the West Woodland Drive development area that has already
been approved by CARPC for an urban service area amendment as requested jointly by the
Town and Village.  Annexation is the next logical development step.  An oral report will be
provided on other items as necessary.

11. Middleton/Westport Joint Zoning Committee Report/Items for Action
An oral report will be provided as necessary.

12. Miscellaneous/Forthcoming Events
An oral report will be provided as necessary. 

13. Adjourn

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\180212MM.wpd
0208181014

12 of 76



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 02/13/2018 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Discussion/Recommendation on Site Plan, Endres Manufacturing Addition, 802 S. Century 
Avenue, Town of Westport

ISSUE SUMMARY: Endres Manufactruing is proposing an additional building in the southeast corner 
of their property adjacent to the high school parking lot. Staff has reviewed and has no major 
concerns other than directing the applicant to work with Waunakee Utilities concerns outlined in the 
attached memo dated 02/01/18.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve the Endres addition site plan as recommended by the Town 
Plan Commission, subject to all Waunakee Utilities concerns being satisfied.

13 of 76



1

Tracy Meinholz

From: Scott Russell <srussell@waems.net>
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 3:13 PM
To: 'Tom Wilson'; Kevin Even; 'Brian Adler'; 'Robert Anderson'; 'Barry Buckwalter'
Cc: 'Jessica Frey'; Tracy Meinholz
Subject: RE: Endres MFG New Building Design Review

No issues from EMS.  
 
Scott Russell 
Waunakee Area EMS 
 
608.849.7522  Office 
608.849.7583  Fax 
608.807.9554  Cell 
 
**Please note my new email address:  srussell@waems.net  
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Tom Wilson [mailto:twilson@townofwestport.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 9:48 AM 
To: Kevin and Leslie Even ‐ Waunakee (kevin@waunakee.com) <kevin@waunakee.com>; Brian Adler 
(waunakeefire@tds.net) <waunakeefire@tds.net>; Robert Anderson <banderson@townofwestport.org>; Scott Russell ‐ 
WAEMS (srussell@waems.net) <srussell@waems.net>; Barry Buckwalter <bbuckwalter@townofwestport.org> 
Cc: Jessica Frey <jfrey@townofwestport.org>; Tracy Meinholz (tmeinholz@waunakee.com) 
<tmeinholz@waunakee.com>; Tom Wilson <twilson@townofwestport.org> 
Subject: FW: Endres MFG New Building Design Review 
 
Please let me know your comments by February 1 if possible thanks. 
 
 
Thomas G. Wilson 
Attorney/Administrator/Clerk‐Treasurer 
Town of Westport (Dane County, WI) 
Population 4,016 
 
5387 Mary Lake Road 
Waunakee, WI 53597 
twilson@townofwestport.org 
www.townofwestport.org 
http://twitter.com/TownofWestport 
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Town‐of‐Westport‐Dane‐County‐Wisconsin/115029421892435?v=wall 
(608) 849‐4372 
(608) 849‐9657 FAX 
 
 
 
The information contained in this transmission is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the recipient(s) 
designated above. This transmission may be an attorney‐client communication and, as such, is a privileged and 

14 of 76



2

confidential communication. If any recipient of this transmission is not a designated recipient, or an agent responsible 
for delivering this transmission to a designated recipient, such recipient is hereby notified that this transmission has 
been received in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this transmission is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this transmission and are not designated above as a recipient, please immediately call 
(608) 849‐4372 and delete this transmission from your system. 
  
All e‐mail sent to the Town of Westport is subject to the Wisconsin open records law. 
  
IF THIS MESSAGE IS TO THE ENTIRE MEMBERSHIP OF A GOVERNMENTAL BODY, you are advised that this email should 
be treated as a one‐way communication and that responses "to all" should be avoided because those responses could 
create a “walking quorum” of the body in violation of the open meetings law (Office of the Wisconsin Attorney General 
Letter of 3/19/2010). 
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Jessica Frey  
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 4:12 PM 
To: Tracy Meinholz 
Cc: Kevin Even (kevin@waunakee.com); Tom Wilson 
Subject: Endres MFG 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Attached is a copy of the Design Review Materials for Endres Manufacturing.  This will need to be on the agenda for the 
February 12 and 13 PC Meetings and the Village Plan Commission Meeting.   
 
Thank you   
 
Jessica Frey 
Executive Assistant 
Town of Westport (Dane County, WI) 
5387 Mary Lake Road 
Waunakee, WI 53597 
www.townofwestport.org 
http://twitter.com/TownofWestport 
(608) 849‐4372 
(608) 849‐9657 FAX 
 

15 of 76



1

Tracy Meinholz

From: Brian Adler <waunakeefire@tds.net>
Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:15 PM
To: 'Tom Wilson'; Kevin Even; 'Robert Anderson'; 'Scott Russell - WAEMS'; 'Barry 

Buckwalter'
Cc: 'Jessica Frey'; Tracy Meinholz
Subject: RE: Endres MFG New Building Design Review

Tom, 
 
I have reviewed the new building design for Endres MFG and the fire department doesn't have any concerns. 
 
Thank you! 
 
Brian 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Tom Wilson [mailto:twilson@townofwestport.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 9:48 AM 
To: Kevin and Leslie Even ‐ Waunakee (kevin@waunakee.com); Brian Adler (waunakeefire@tds.net); Robert Anderson; 
Scott Russell ‐ WAEMS (srussell@waems.net); Barry Buckwalter 
Cc: Jessica Frey; Tracy Meinholz (tmeinholz@waunakee.com); Tom Wilson 
Subject: FW: Endres MFG New Building Design Review 
 
Please let me know your comments by February 1 if possible thanks. 
 
 
Thomas G. Wilson 
Attorney/Administrator/Clerk‐Treasurer 
Town of Westport (Dane County, WI) 
Population 4,016 
 
5387 Mary Lake Road 
Waunakee, WI 53597 
twilson@townofwestport.org 
www.townofwestport.org 
http://twitter.com/TownofWestport 
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Town‐of‐Westport‐Dane‐County‐Wisconsin/115029421892435?v=wall 
(608) 849‐4372 
(608) 849‐9657 FAX 
 
 
 
The information contained in this transmission is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the recipient(s) 
designated above. This transmission may be an attorney‐client communication and, as such, is a privileged and 
confidential communication. If any recipient of this transmission is not a designated recipient, or an agent responsible 
for delivering this transmission to a designated recipient, such recipient is hereby notified that this transmission has 
been received in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this transmission is strictly 

16 of 76



2

prohibited. If you have received this transmission and are not designated above as a recipient, please immediately call 
(608) 849‐4372 and delete this transmission from your system. 
  
All e‐mail sent to the Town of Westport is subject to the Wisconsin open records law. 
  
IF THIS MESSAGE IS TO THE ENTIRE MEMBERSHIP OF A GOVERNMENTAL BODY, you are advised that this email should 
be treated as a one‐way communication and that responses "to all" should be avoided because those responses could 
create a “walking quorum” of the body in violation of the open meetings law (Office of the Wisconsin Attorney General 
Letter of 3/19/2010). 
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Jessica Frey  
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 4:12 PM 
To: Tracy Meinholz 
Cc: Kevin Even (kevin@waunakee.com); Tom Wilson 
Subject: Endres MFG 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Attached is a copy of the Design Review Materials for Endres Manufacturing.  This will need to be on the agenda for the 
February 12 and 13 PC Meetings and the Village Plan Commission Meeting.   
 
Thank you   
 
Jessica Frey 
Executive Assistant 
Town of Westport (Dane County, WI) 
5387 Mary Lake Road 
Waunakee, WI 53597 
www.townofwestport.org 
http://twitter.com/TownofWestport 
(608) 849‐4372 
(608) 849‐9657 FAX 
 

17 of 76



 

322 Moravian Valley Road, PO Box 70, Waunakee, WI 53597 
(608) 849-8111, Fax (608) 849-4109, www.waunakeeutilities.com 

 

 

 

To: Kevin Even 
 Tracy Meinholz 
 

From: Randy Dorn 
Dave Dresen 

 Tim Herlitzka 
 

RE: Endres Manufacturing Addition 
 

Date: February 1, 2018 
 

This memo provides comments for the Endres Manufacturing Addition submittal. 

• We encourage the applicant to discuss the location of the proposed water and sewer laterals with 
Randy Dorn at 849-4107. 

• The applicant should contact MMSD to ensure all fees are paid on the site of the new building. 
• The applicant will need to ensure that a safe distance is maintained from certain underground 

electric lines along Century Avenue when excavation is done for the water and sewer laterals and 
driveway. 

• We have had initial conversations about the electric service to the new facility but we encourage 
the applicant to contact Dave Dresen at 850-5450 to discuss the details of the additional electric 
load. 

• The applicant will need to maintain certain minimum clearances from the existing transformer in 
the area, including all proposed landscaping. 

18 of 76

http://www.waunakeeutilities.com/


19 of 76



20 of 76



21 of 76



22 of 76



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 02/13/2018 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Discuss and Take Action on Signage for Animart, 1340 Water Wheel Drive, Village of 
Waunakee

ISSUE SUMMARY: Attached for your consideration is the proposed signage for the new Animart 
location. Staff has reviewed and determined that it meets code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve the signage as presented. 

23 of 76



24 of 76



25 of 76



26 of 76



27 of 76



28 of 76



 

Engineers   |   Architects   |   Planners   |   Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 6808 Odana Road, Suite 200, Madison, WI 53719-1137 
SEH is 100% employee-owned   |   sehinc.com   |   608.620.6199   |   800.732.4362   |   888.908.8166 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Kevin Even 
 
FROM: Ed Freer 
 
DATE: February 6, 2018     
 
RE: Proposed Signage  
  
 Animart Store  
 Kilkenny   Commons  
 1340 Waterwheel Drive 
 Waunakee, Wisconsin 
  
  
  
Project Description:  
 
 
The Applicant is requesting approval for the installation of signage for the newly constructed Animart Retail Store 
at 1340 Waterwheel Drive.  The project has successfully obtained building and site development and is under 
construction. 
 
 
Proposed Signage Consists of four [4] Wall Signs. The signage is part of a standard, corporate design vocabulary 
incorporated in similar facilities found in other parts of the greater Madison area.     
 
The proposed design aesthetic and materials palette has been developed to be used with the architecture 
developed for Animart retail stores. Two applications of the largest wall sign is the store brand. One sign facing 
the parking lot and the other sign facing Hwy “Q” The additional two signs are smaller and indicate the services 
offered and the store’s entrance location.. 
 
 
 
     GENERAL COMMENTS 
 

A. Wall Sign: Total Four Signs 
 

The Store Name “ ANIMART” Sign is located on both the south and west architectural elevations 
of the building, as illustrated on Drawing WS-1 . The entrance and Grooming Sign is on the south 
building elevation. 

 
1. South Elevation - Dimensions: 2’-6” X 12’-11”   Total Area    32.4 SF.                           
2. South Elevation - Dimensions: 2’-6” X 12’-11”   Total Area    32.4 SF. 
3. Grooming Sign – Dimensions:  1’-6” X 7’-0”       Total Area    10.5 SF. 
4. Entrance Sign -   Dimensions:   1’-6” X 7’-0”      Total Area    10.5 SF. 

29 of 76



Memorandum 
February 6, 2018     
Page 2 
 
 

 
The total square footage for the four signs equals 85.8 SF  
 
Note: The requested square footage is well below the allowable 150 SF 
           This application still allows additional signage for future retail space not occupied at this time.  
 
All signs project form the exterior walls and are consistent within the allowable 6” maximum projection. 
 
 
 
 

B. Signage General Character 
 

a. The proposed materials and general aesthetics are stylized to represent the stores brand and 
consistent with a font and color scheme representing Animart. 
 

 
 

C. Lighting 
 

a. Proposed lighting is internal LED Lighting Source 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Recommend approving submittal. Applicant’s submittal appears to be consistent with Village Code signage 
requirements. [Article VIII .Signs and Billboards Sec. 106-960.Signs Permitted] 
 

30 of 76



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 02/13/2018 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Initial Consultation on Pre-Annexation Request for Approximately 130 Acres at the Corner of 
Woodland Drive and CTH Q, Town of Westport

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Attached is a pre-annexation application for the Woodland West property. The 
USA Amendment was approved by CARPC last month

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: This is an initial consultation to discuss the annexation petition and 
adjacent properties and roadways that should be included in the annexation process.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  None.

31 of 76



 

Engineers   |   Architects   |   Planners   |   Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 6808 Odana Road, Suite 200, Madison, WI 53719-1137 
SEH is 100% employee-owned   |   sehinc.com   |   608.620.6199   |   800.732.4362   |   888.908.8166 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Kevin Even 
 
FROM: Ed Freer 
 
DATE: February 6, 2018     
 
RE: Re: Woodland West Pre-Annexation Application Infrastructure Considerations  
  
  
Project Description:  
 
Lone Silo North Addition, LLC and Dalmatian Farms, LLC wish to annex 130 acres of lands west of CTH Q and 
south of Woodland Drive to the Village of Waunakee (Village) territorial area. The regional Urban Service Area 
Amendment has been applied for, reviewed by CARPC and has received the recommendation for approval.  
During the review process the proposed developments, land use and expanded Urban Services Area has 
presented are consistent with the Village’s comprehensive plan completed in January 2017. The county staff 
review process did identify a number of conditions that will need to be met as part of the Amendment approval. 
The next step is to obtain direct annexation approval by unanimous approval. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Recommend approving submittal [including satisfying CARPC Conditions of Approval] 
 

32 of 76



  
 

 
RKS:tll\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2018 Site Plan Comments\1. Woodland West Pre_Annexation\Woodland West Preannex Comments.docx 

February 1, 2018 
 
 
Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
500 West Main Street 
P.O. Box 100 
Waunakee, WI  53597 
 
Re: Woodland West Pre-Annexation Application 
 Infrastructure Considerations 
 
Dear Kevin, 
 
Lone Silo North Addition, LLC and Dalmatian Farms, LLC wish to annex 130 acres of lands west of 
CTH Q and south of Woodland Drive to the Village of Waunakee (Village) territorial area. The applicant 
has completed the regional Urban Service Area Amendment to satisfy the regional planning commission, 
and has presented a neighborhood plan guided by the Village’s comprehensive plan. The applicant now 
seeks annexation to the Village through direct annexation by unanimous approval.  
 
As the Village grows, infrastructure must be extended to serve the new developments. In the case of 
utilities, not only is the extension of pipes required, but the capacity of existing pipes and infrastructure 
must also be considered. The applicant presented potential sewer and water main layouts to serve their 
development from extending from existing infrastructure, which will be discussed below, as well as 
considerations for off-site and adjacent improvements to be made to serve this area and beyond as well.  
 
Sanitary Sewer 
 
The applicant proposes two separate sewer extensions to serve their annexation. The north sewer is 
proposed to extend from a sewer main intended to be constructed along the south line of the lot north of 
and adjacent to First Choice Dental, and cross CTH Q to the area of the Herb and Eileen Statz property. 
This sewer would serve the areas shaded light blue on the applicant’s Map 5.1. Checking feasibility, it 
seems this concept sewer location is reasonable and acceptable to serve that area. There does not appear 
to be a need to extend this sewer further in the future, as lands north of this development are already 
developed, and lands to the east (Ganser’s Lonestar land) are most economically served by other sewers. 
This blue shaded area of Lone Silo North Addition, LLC is relatively small and terminal to this sewer, 
thus capacity in the sewers downstream of the area, extending to the Blue Ridge Pumping Station, should 
be acceptable without adding additional capacity. 
 
The south sewer is proposed to extend from the Water Wheel area on the west side of CTH Q, and is 
intended to serve the pink shaded area of the applicant’s Map 5.1. Checking feasibility of this conceptual 
sewer location, the sewer crosses existing topographical hills and valleys that make its location 
impractical without significant grading work, some of which would be required on lands outside the 
annexed area. For example, if the sewer depth was set 25 feet deep, a preferred maximum depth, while 
crossing the first topographic high point west of the First Presbyterian Church, the sewer would not be 
deep enough to cross the next valley along its route to the north. The sewer study prepared for 
Waunakee Utilities in 2013 suggests a route for this sewer further to the south, near Meffert Road, in 
order to avoid extreme depth while keeping gravity sewer in play. Of course, the other way to serve lands 

33 of 76



Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
Page 2 
February 1, 2018 

 
 

 
RKS:tll\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2018 Site Plan Comments\1. Woodland West Pre_Annexation\Woodland West Preannex Comments.docx 

without installing extremely deep gravity sewers is by installing pumping stations, which could be an 
option. Pumping stations should generally be avoided, if possible, to limit the future maintenance burden 
they bring to the Village. Additionally, the sewer that serves the pink shaded area of this annexation will 
likely be the sewer that will be extended to serve lands west of this plat, including the Woodland Drive 
School, and lands west of Westview Meadows. Thus, it will need to be oversized appropriately to carry 
anticipated growth.  
 
Finally, as a product of the 2013 sewer study, there is infrastructure downstream of this development that 
is reaching its tipping point on capacity. Specifically, the Blue Ridge Pumping Station on Peaceful Valley 
Parkway will likely need to be upgraded for additional capacity. From least costly to greater, this could 
include changing pump impellers, changing the pumps and controls, and adding additional storage 
capacity to the wet well as population is added west of CTH Q. Also, downstream of this pumping station 
are gravity sewers that were not sized to handle significant added flow from west of CTH Q. Sewers in 
an easement between Tierney Drive and Foggy Mountain Pass will need to be evaluated for upgrading 
capacity via upsizing or adding a parallel main. The end result is that, if downstream improvements are 
anticipated to be required to serve these lands intended for annexation (and others), a mechanism for 
capturing fees to make those improvements should be considered and adopted, allowing the Village to 
charge the new developments for the ability to accommodate them.  
 
Water Mains 
 
Conceptual water mains extensions are shown on the applicant’s Map 5.5. These include connections 
between the Water Wheel Drive main, a connection at Peaceful Valley Parkway, and three separate 
connections at Woodland Drive. A future main extending to the west edge of the proposed annexation is 
also proposed. This concept plan appears acceptable, with its mix of transmission size and local sized 
mains. We recommend that before final sizes and locations are chosen, consideration of where future 
water storage (tower or ground reservoir), well and other more global water system needs may be logical 
and required.  
 
Street Improvements 
 
Roadways adjacent to developing lands have been the responsibility of the developer to improve. In this 
case, CTH Q is mostly improved, but the south side of Woodland Drive adjacent to this development 
will need to be “urbanized;” that is, have curb and gutter, bike lanes and sidewalk added. These 
improvements should be considered for inclusion in the pre-annexation agreement as a developer cost.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 

 
R. Kent Straus, P.E. 
 
c: Tim Herlitzka, Waunakee Utilities (via e-mail) 

Todd Schmidt, Village of Waunakee (via e-mail) 
Bryan Kleinmaier, Stafford Rosenbaum (via e-mail) 
Ed Freer, SEH (via e-mail) 

34 of 76



35 of 76



36 of 76



37 of 76



38 of 76



39 of 76



40 of 76



41 of 76



42 of 76



43 of 76



44 of 76



45 of 76



46 of 76



47 of 76



48 of 76



49 of 76



50 of 76



51 of 76



52 of 76



53 of 76



54 of 76



55 of 76



56 of 76



57 of 76



58 of 76



59 of 76



60 of 76



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 02/13/2018 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Initial Consultation, Kalscheuer, 5511 Easy Street, CSM & Rezone, Town of Westport

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Mr. Kalscheuer applied for and was granted a CSM and rezone of his property in 
2010. At that time he agreed to no further land divisions of the remainder of the property. He would 
like to ask the Commission members to consider removing this restriction so that he can create 
another new single family lot.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None

RECOMMENDED MOTION: This is a consult only. No action necessary.

61 of 76



Print Date: 2/8/2018

DISCLAIMER: The Village of Waunakee does not guarantee the accuracy of the material contained here in 
and is not responsible for any misuse or misrepresentation of this information or its derivatives. SCALE: 1" = '

Kalscheuer Consult

414 4,964.09

VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE
500 W. Main St

Waunakee, WI 53597

(608) 850-8500

62 of 76



63 of 76



64 of 76



65 of 76



66 of 76



67 of 76



68 of 76



69 of 76



70 of 76



71 of 76



72 of 76



73 of 76



74 of 76



75 of 76



76 of 76


	Agenda
	January 9, 2018
	Discussion/Recommendation on Site Plan, Endres Manufacturing Addition, 802 S. Century Avenue, Town of Westport
	Discuss and Take Action on Signage for Animart, 1340 Water Wheel Drive, Village of Waunakee
	Initial Consultation on Pre-Annexation Request for Approximately 130 Acres at the Corner of Woodland Drive and CTH Q, Town of Westport
	tmp2A3.tmp
	1593_001
	doc01915120180115084006
	Pre-Annex Application Form 01.22.18

	Initial Consultation, Kalscheuer, 5511 Easy Street, CSM & Rezone, Town of Westport

